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http://www.kulturmanagement.net/englisch/  Arts Management Network – worldwide  
http://www.artsinternational.org/ Arts International – global interchange in the arts       
http://www.nmaa.si.edu/  National Museum of American Art 

 
General surveys:  
http://usinfo.state.gov/journals/itsv/0403/ijse/ijse0403.htm  The Arts in America: New Directions.   
 IIP e-journal, April 2003  
 
Role of government:  
http://www.rand.org/pubs/monographs/2006/RAND_MG359.pdf  
The Arts and State Governments: At Arm’s Length or Arm in Arm?  RAND, 2006.   
 
Visual arts:  
http://www.rand.org/pubs/monographs/2005/RAND_MG290.pdf
A Portrait of the Visual Arts: Meeting the Challenges of a New Era. RAND, 2005.   
      
http://www.moma.org/research/library/artresearchfaq.html  FAQ about how to do art research        
 
Portraits:  
http://npgportraits.si.edu/code/emuseum.asp  
Portrait Search – an online service of the National Portrait Gallery       
 
Abstract art:  
http://www.americanabstractartists.org/  American Abstract Artists – an artist-run organization      
 
Graphic arts:  
http://www.clt.astate.edu/Elind/sagamain.htm Society of American Graphic Artists      
 
Photography:  
http://photography.si.edu/ Smithsonian Photography Initiative     
 
Performing arts:  
http://www.loc.gov/performingarts/encyclopedia/   Performing Arts Encyclopedia: A Guide to the  
 Performing Arts Collections and Exhibitions at the Library of Congress      
http://www.artspresenters.org/ Association of Performing Arts Presenters   
http://www.symphony.org/  American Symphony Orchestra League 
http://www.andante.com/  Andante - Covers the world of classical music and opera  
http://www.houstongrandopera.org/  Houston Grand Opera 
http://www.nypl.org/research/lpa/lpa.html New York Public Library for the Performing Arts 
 
Dance:  
http://www.ala.org/acrl/resdec02.html   Dance: A Guide to Web Resources  
http://www.nycballet.com/nycballet/homepage.asp  New York City Ballet 
http://digilib.nypl.org/dynaweb/dhc/findaid  Dance research resources: finding aids for archival 

collections – by Dance Heritage Coalition    
http://digilib.nypl.org/dynaweb/dhc/  Dance Heritage Coalition collection    
http://www.danceusa.org/    Dance/USA 
http://www.balletcompanies.com/  balletcompanies.com 
http://www.alvinailey.org/  Alvin Ailey American Dance Theater   
http://www.abt.org/   American Ballet Theatre 
http://www.robertmoseskin.org/ Robert Moses' Kin 
http://institute.sundance.org/jsps/site.jsp?resource=pag_ex_home  Sundance Institute - Site of the 
dance troupe founded in 1995 by Artistic Director Robert Moses.   
 
Motion pictures:  
http://www.filmfestivals.com/ Film and television festivals - a searchable directory  
http://www.kftv.com/product-2500.html Guide to film festivals worldwide  
http://lcweb.loc.gov/film/filmnfr.html   National Film Registry (LC)  
http://www.oscars.org/index.html   Academy of Motion Picture Arts & Sciences  
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http://www.cinema.ucla.edu/ UCLA Film and Television Archive  
http://us.imdb.com/    Internet Movie Database 
http://www.mpaa.org/    Motion Picture Association of America (MPAA) 
http://www.rand.org/publications/MR/MR1552/   From Celluloid to Cyberspace: the Media Arts 

and the Changing Arts World (RAND, 2002)       
 
Theater:  
http://www.nea.gov/pub/ChoralMusic.pdf American Masterpieces: Choral Music.  NEA, 2006. 40p. 
http://act-sf.org/index.cfm?s_id=&pid=hom American Conservatory Theater 
http://theater.nytimes.com/pages/theater/reviews/index.html NYT Theater Review Index, 1996-       
http://nast.arts-accredit.org/   National Association of Schools of Theatre          
http://www.infoplease.com/ipea/A0153671.html Longest Broadway runs     
http://www.americantheaterweb.com/   American Theater Web - Theaters, production 

schedules, news, reviews, and articles. 
http://www.tcg.org/   Theatre Communications Group - Promotes the professional, 

not-for-profit American theater. 
 
Arts funding:  
http://foundationcenter.org/findfunders/statistics/gm_growth.html - Grantmaker Statistics  
http://www.infoplease.com/ipa/A0770757.html U.S. Charities Receiving Highest Donations in 

2004 (ranked 1 to 25)     
http://www.csulb.edu/~jvancamp/freedom2.html Government support for cultural activities        
http://fdncenter.org/learn/topical/arts.html  Funding and Managing Arts Organizations  
http://www.fdncenter.org/research/trends_analysis/pdf/03arthl.pdf  
Arts Funding IV: an update on foundation trends.  The Foundation Center, 2003       
http://www.arts.gov/pub/how.pdf How the United States Funds the Arts. NEA, October 2004      
http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/52673.pdf  
Arts and Humanities: Background on Funding. CRS report, updated August 26, 2005      
http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/62624.pdf  
Arts and Humanities: Background on Funding. CRS report, updated February 16, 2006     
 
Events:  
http://www.eventjar.com/  
EventJar.com (arts and culture search engine) – events, venues, performers and organizations    
 
http://www.ninch.org/ National Initiative for a Networked Cultural Heritage  
 
Art in public places:  
http://192.70.175.153/cpa/home/index.shtml Public art in Colorado      
http://www.miamidade.gov/publicart/ Miami-Dade County Art in Public Places    
 
Image databases:  
http://www.infotoday.com/searcher/sep04/mattison.shtml  
Looking for Good Art – web resources and image databases, part 1 – links     
http://www.infotoday.com/searcher/oct04/mattison.shtml  
Looking for Good Art: images and art resources on the web – general and U.S. tools      
http://www.hwwilson.com/Databases/artmuseum.htm  
Art Museum Image Gallery – launched by WilsonWeb in July 2005     
http://npgportraits.si.edu/code/emuseum.asp  
Portrait Search – an online service of the National Portrait Gallery     
http://www.saskia.com/ SASKIA archive of digital images of Western and Eastern art     
 
Venues, arts centers:  
http://www.eventjar.com/  
Arts and culture search engine – to find events, venues, performers and organizations       
http://www.musiccenter.org/  Music Center – Performing Arts Center of Los Angeles County      
http://www.lincolncenter.org/default.asp?cv=1 Lincoln Center for the Performing Arts     
http://www.artscomplex.com/  Denver Performing Arts Complex    
http://www.oxnardpacc.com/  Oxnard Performing Arts and Convention Center    
http://www.simi-arts.org/  Simi Valley Cultural Arts Center    
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http://www.ybca.org/b_ybca.html Yerba Buena Center for the Arts    
 
Arts administration:  
http://www.gradschools.com/listings/menus/admin_np_menu.html  
Graduate programs in arts administration       
http://education.nyu.edu/music/artsadmin/  
Performing arts administration – courses at New York University        
http://www.bolzcenter.org/ Bolz Center for Arts Admin. – University of Wisconsin at Madison     
 
Art dealers:  
http://www.fada.com/  Fine Art Dealers Association  
http://www.worldartantiques.com/ World of Art and Antiques  
 
Artist managers, arts employment:  
http://www.iamaworld.com/ International Artist Managers Association (classical music)     
http://www.agentassociation.com/index.cfm Association of Talent Agents      
http://www.artspresenters.org/ Association of Performing Arts Presenters     
http://www.artjob.org/  Art jobs - in the visual arts     
 
Arts education:  
http://www.ed.gov/pubs/ArtsEd/    
arts education and school improvement resources – from U.S. Dept of Education       
http://www.arts-accredit.org/ Arts accreditation page    
http://www.arts-accredit.org/index.jsp?page=NOAA  National Office for Arts Accreditation     
http://www.gradschools.com/listings/menus/admin_np_menu.html  
graduate programs in arts administration          
http://education.nyu.edu/music/artsadmin/  
performing arts administration – courses at New York University          
http://www.bolzcenter.org/  
Bolz Center for Arts Administration – University of Wisconsin at Madison       
http://nast.arts-accredit.org/ National Association of Schools of Theatre   
http://www.rand.org/publications/MG/MG222/  
Arts Education Partnerships: Lesson Learned from One School District’s Experience. RAND, 
2004       
http://fdncenter.org/research/trends_analysis/pdf/arted05.pdf  
Foundation Funding for Arts Education: An Overview of Recent Trends. The Foundation Center, 
October 2005 (20 pages)       
http://www.amc-music.org/news/articles/survey2006.htm  
Best 100 Communities for Music Education in America 2006 – list by American Music 
Conference, March 2006       
 
Arts administration:  
http://www.ispa.org/ http://www.ispa.org/
International Society for the Performing Arts Found. (performing arts executives, government 
officials, etc)   
http://www.gradschools.com/listings/menus/admin_np_menu.html  
Graduate schools of arts administration          
 
Benefits of the arts:  
http://www.rand.org/pubs/monographs/2005/RAND_MG218.pdf  
Gifts of the Muse: Reframing the Debate About the Benefits of the Arts. RAND, 2004        
 
Arts and the economy:  
http://www.artsusa.org/press/prcontent.asp?id=97 New study of creative industries reveals  
 that 11 metro areas in USA have more than 10,000 arts-related jobs each: press  
 release, June 28, 2004      
http://art.state.mt.us/resources/resources_econartists1.asp The Economic Impact of Montana 
Artists. Center for Applied Economic Research, Montana State University, January 2005      
http://www.state.sc.us/arts/economic/index.html  Economic impact of the arts in South  
 Carolina: a study         
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Arts and rural areas:  
http://preview.nga.org/Files/pdf/RURALARTS.pdf  
Strengthening Rural Economies Through the Arts. Issue brief, NGA Center for Best Practice, 2005      
 
Participation in the arts:  
http://www.arts.gov/pub/CivicEngagement.pdf  
The Arts and Civic Engagement: Involved in Arts, Involved in Life. National Endowment for the 
Arts, November 1, 2006.  (8 pages; this report describes a survey finding that there is a correlation 
between involvement in the arts and other civic engagement, volunteerism, involvement in social 
activity and outdoor recreation, etc)    
 
Crafts heritage:  
http://www.newyorker.com/critics/atlarge/articles/060213crat_atlarge Shining Tree of Life: What 
the Shakers Did. Adam Gopnik in The New Yorker, February 13-20, 2006 (artistic legacy of the 
Shaker religious group)    
 
Art theft:  
http://www.fbi.gov/hq/cid/arttheft/arttheft.htm FBI program against art theft       
http://www.interpol.com/Public/WorkOfArt/ Stolen Works of Art. Interpol web site        
http://www.nationalmuseums.org.uk/spoliation.html   
Spoliation of Works of Art During the Holocaust and World War Two Period.  Links to 
 reports and lists          
http://financialservices.house.gov/hearings.asp?formmode=detail&hearing=496  
Review of the Repatriation of Holocaust Art Assets in the United States. Hearing before the 
U.S. House Committee on Financial Services, Subcommittee on Domestic and International Monetary 
Policy, Trade and Technology, July 27, 2006.       
 
Arts and the internet:  
http://www.pewinternet.org/pdfs/PIP_Artists.Musicians_Report.pdf  
Artists, Musicians and the Internet. Pew Internet and American Life Project, December 2004.        
 
Intellectual property:  
http://www.lib.jmu.edu/org/mla/ Copyright for music librarians          
 
Art history:  
http://art-history.concordia.ca/AHRC/ Art History Research Center           
http://witcombe.sbc.edu/ARTHLinks.html Art History Resources on the Web    
 
History of the arts in the United States:  
http://www.loc.gov/rr/program/bib/harlem/harlem.html  
A Guide to Harlem Renaissance Materials. LC collections relating to African-American  
  music, writing and art in the 1920s and 1930s      
 
Artists – biographies:  
http://library.wichita.edu/finearts/American%20Art%20Biography.htm  
American art biography – an annotated bibliography       
 
Arts and minorities:  
http://www.loc.gov/rr/program/bib/harlem/harlem.html  
A Guide to Harlem Renaissance Materials. LC collections relating to African-American  
  music, writing and art in the 1920s and 1930s       
 
Health aspects:  
http://www.ifpam.org/ International Foundation for Performing Arts Medicine     
 
Labor and union issues:  
http://www.iatse-intl.org/index_flash.html  Internat. Alliance of Theatrical and Stage Employees      
 
Museums:  
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http://www.mcn.edu/resources/sitesonline.htm  Museum Sites Online. Museum Computer Network        
http://www.museumnetwork.com/index.asp  Museum Network – museum links and news, worldwide    
http://www.museumland.com/gateway.php  Museumland. Museums worldwide and cultural heritage       
http://www.aam-us.org/  American Association of Museums 
http://www.amn.org/   Art Museum Network 
http://www.walkerart.org/   Walker Art Institute 
http://www.whitney.org/    Whitney Museum of American Art 
 
International data and issues:  
http://www.glopad.org/pi/index.php Global Performing Arts Database (GloPAD)    
http://www.culturalpolicy.org/pdf/UNESCO2003.pdf  
The International Creative Sector: its Dimensions, Dynamics, and Audience Development.   
  Conference, at University of Texas at Austin, June 2003      
Literature: 
http://www.nybooks.com/ New York Review of Books 
http://www.loc.gov/poetry/laureate_current.html Current Poet Laureate 
http://www.librarysites.info/presidential-libraries.htm  Presidential Libraries 
http://www.loc.gov/about/  The Librarian of Congress – James Billington 
http://www.librarysites.info/ Libraries in the United States 
http://www.pw.org/  Poets and Writers 
http://publishersweekly.reviewsnews.com/Publishers Weekly 
 
U.S. government:  
http://arts.endow.gov/    National Endowment for the Arts (NEA)       
http://www.arts.gov/pub/2005GUIDE_eBook.pdf National Endowment for the Arts 2005 Guide  
http://www.cfa.gov/   The U.S. Commission of Fine Arts 
      
U. S. government - state agencies:  
http://www.nasaa-arts.org/  National Assembly of State Arts Agencies     
http://www.arts.state.al.us/  Alabama State Council on the Arts 
http://www.educ.state.ak.us/aksca/ Alaska State Council on the Arts     
http://www.arizonaarts.org/  Arizona Commission on the Arts  
http://www.arkansasarts.com/ Arkansas Arts Council    
http://www.cac.ca.gov/  California Arts Council        
http://www.coloarts.state.co.us/ Colorado Council on the Arts      
http://www.cultureandtourism.org/ Connecticut Commission on Culture and Tourism       
http://www.artsdel.org/  Delaware Division of the Arts    
http://www.florida-arts.org/  Florida Division of Cultural Affairs 
http://www.gaarts.org/  Georgia Council for the Arts 
http://www.state.hi.us/sfca/ Hawaii State Foundation on Culture and the Arts      
http://www.arts.idaho.gov/  Idaho Commission on the Arts 
http://www.state.il.us/agency/iac/ Illinois Arts Council   
http://www.in.gov/arts/  Indiana Arts Commission       
http://www.culturalaffairs.org/ Iowa Dept of Cultural Affairs      
http://www.iowaartscouncil.org/ Iowa Arts Council    
http://arts.state.ks.us/  Kansas Arts Commission    
http://www.kyarts.org/  Kentucky Arts Council    
http://www.crt.state.la.us/arts/ Louisiana Division of the Arts 
http://mainearts.maine.gov/ Maine Arts Commission 
http://www.msac.org/  Maryland State Arts Council 
http://www.massculturalcouncil.org/ Massachusetts Cultural Council 
http://www.michigan.gov/hal/0,1607,7-160-17445_19272---,00.html Michigan Cncl. for Arts 
http://www.arts.state.mn.us/ Minnesota State Arts Board 
http://www.arts.state.ms.us/ Mississippi Arts Commission         
http://www.missouriartscouncil.org/  Missouri Arts Council    
http://art.state.mt.us/  Montana Arts Council    
http://www.nebraskaartscouncil.org/  Nebraska Arts Council      
http://dmla.clan.lib.nv.us/docs/arts/  Nevada Arts Council    
http://www.state.nh.us/nharts/ New Hampshire State Council on the Arts  
http://www.njartscouncil.org/ New Jersey State Council on the Arts  

http://www.mcn.edu/resources/sitesonline.htm
http://www.museumnetwork.com/index.asp
http://www.museumland.com/gateway.php
http://www.aam-us.org/
http://www.amn.org/
http://www.walkerart.org/
http://www.whitney.org/
http://www.glopad.org/pi/index.php
http://www.culturalpolicy.org/pdf/UNESCO2003.pdf
http://www.nybooks.com/
http://www.loc.gov/poetry/laureate_current.html
http://www.librarysites.info/presidential-libraries.htm
http://www.loc.gov/about/
http://www.librarysites.info/
http://www.pw.org/
http://publishersweekly.reviewsnews.com/
http://www.arts.gov/
http://www.arts.gov/pub/2005GUIDE_eBook.pdf
http://www.cfa.gov/
http://www.nasaa-arts.org/
http://www.arts.state.al.us/
http://www.educ.state.ak.us/aksca/
http://www.arizonaarts.org/
http://www.arkansasarts.com/
http://www.cac.ca.gov/
http://www.coloarts.state.co.us/
http://www.cultureandtourism.org/
http://www.artsdel.org/
http://www.florida-arts.org/
http://www.gaarts.org/
http://www.state.hi.us/sfca/
http://www.arts.idaho.gov/
http://www.state.il.us/agency/iac/
http://www.in.gov/arts/
http://www.culturalaffairs.org/
http://www.iowaartscouncil.org/
http://arts.state.ks.us/
http://www.kyarts.org/
http://www.crt.state.la.us/arts/
http://mainearts.maine.gov/
http://www.msac.org/
http://www.massculturalcouncil.org/
http://www.michigan.gov/hal/0,1607,7-160-17445_19272---,00.html
http://www.arts.state.mn.us/
http://www.arts.state.ms.us/
http://www.missouriartscouncil.org/
http://art.state.mt.us/
http://www.nebraskaartscouncil.org/
http://dmla.clan.lib.nv.us/docs/arts/
http://www.state.nh.us/nharts/
http://www.njartscouncil.org/


http://www.nmarts.org/  New Mexico Arts   
http://www.nysca.org/  New York State Council on the Arts       
http://www.ncdcr.gov/oarts.asp North Carolina Office of the Arts     
http://www.state.nd.us/arts/ North Dakota Council on the Arts       
http://www.oac.state.oh.us/ Ohio Arts Council       
http://www.oklaosf.state.ok.us/~arts/  Oklahoma Arts Council     
http://www.oregonartscommission.org/main.php Oregon Arts Commission    
http://www.pacouncilonthearts.org/  Pennsylvania Council on the Arts    
http://www.arts.ri.gov/default2.php  Rhode Island Council on the Arts     
http://www.state.sc.us/arts/ South Carolina Arts Commission         
http://www.sdarts.org/  South Dakota Arts Council     
http://www.arts.state.tn.us/ Tennessee Arts Commission    
http://www.arts.state.tx.us/  Texas Cultural and Arts Network  
http://arts.utah.gov/   Utah Arts Council 
http://www.vermontartscouncil.org/  Vermont Arts Council 
http://www.arts.state.va.us/ Virginia Commission for the Arts 
http://www.arts.wa.gov/  Washington State Arts Commission 
http://arts.state.wi.us/static/ Wisconsin Arts Board 
http://wyoarts.state.wy.us/  Wyoming Arts Council 
 
City and County agencies:   
http://www.culturela.org/  Los Angeles City Cultural Affairs Dept     
http://www.miamidade.gov/publicart/   Miami-Dade County Art in Public Places   
http://www.ci.nyc.ny.us/html/dcla/home.html  New York City Dept of Cultural Affairs    
 
Note:  IIP = Office of International Information Programs, U.S. Dept of State  
          LC = Library of Congress  
          NEA = National Endowment for the Arts  
          NARA=National Archives and Records Administration  
  
 

American Reference Center, U.S. Embassy, P.O. Box 1190, Wellington  
We welcome your feedback!  Email: wellington.arc@state.gov
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